CentreStack Installation Guide Documentation

Release 12.5.9520.51622

Gladinet, Inc.

Apr 08, 2023

Contents

1	1 Getting Started	3
	1.1 Introduction	3
	1.2 Overview	3 4
		Т
2	Installation	7
	2.1 Step 1: Prepare the File Storage	7
	2.2 Step 2: Prepare Active Directory (Optional)	8
	2.3 Step 3: Prepare the Database Server	8
	2.4 Step 4: Prepare the CentreStack Server	9
	2.5 Step 5: Start Installation	10
3	3 Initial Configuration	15
4	Web Portal	17
5	Management Console	19
	5.1 Add Tenant	20
	5.2 Team Folders	21
	5.3 Storage Manager	22
	5.4 User Manager	23
	5.5 Delegate Administration	24
	5.6 Active Directory Integration (Optional)	26
	5.7 Group Policy	27
	5.8 Branding	28
6	Enable SSL – Install SSL Certificate	29
7	Setup Worker Node for SSL	35
8	8 Verify External URL, Internal URL and the Node Name	41
	8.1 Verify External URL	41
	8.2 Verify Internal URL	41
	8.3 Verify Node Name	42
9	9 Add additional CentreStack servers to the cluster	43
10	10 Branding	45

	10.1 Self-Service Branding	45
11	1 11 Upgrade CentreStack	47
	11.1 Using the GUI Installer to Upgrade	47
12	2 Advanced Topics	49
	12.1 Split Database	49
	12.2 Change Authentication Algorithm to Version 2	50
	12.3 Change the Synchronized Uploader to Asynchronized Uploader	50
	12.4 Zone Support	51
	12.5 Scalability Tuning	51
	12.6 Need More Information?	53
13	3 Upgrade CentreStack	55
	13.1 Using the GUI Installer to Upgrade	55
14	4 Indices and tables	57

Contents:

1 Getting Started

1.1 Introduction

Welcome to the CentreStack Server Installation Guide. This guide describes the installation tasks for CentreStack, the managed file synchronization and sharing solution.

CentreStack includes the CentreStack server, which runs on the Microsoft Windows server platform, and client agent applications for Web browsers, Microsoft Windows, Mac OS X, and for mobile platforms such as the Android and the Apple iOS operating systems.

1.2 Overview

CentreStack is a managed file sync and share solution that focuses on local file server cloud-enablement. It differentiates from other file sync and share solutions (EFSS) by focusing on the security, control, file server and team collaboration. CentreStack does really well in the following areas:

- 1. maintain security by migrating files and folders while keeping the NTFS permissions intact.
- 2. provide on-demand access that honors read-only and write permission in real-time.
- 3. mirror local network shares on file servers to allow for team collaboration in the cloud.
- 4. provide virtual drive letter mapping to the files and folders for access.
- 5. provide file locking, version control, client encryption, and more advanced features for managing all virtual drives.

CentreStack Server is a software built on top of the Microsoft Web Platform:

- · Windows Server
- IIS (Internet Information Server)
- .NET Framework and ASP.NET
- WCF (Windows Communication Foundation)

• PostgreSQL, MySQL or SQL Server

Since the CentreStack Server is built on top of the Microsoft Web Platform, it integrates very well with other Microsoft components such as the NTFS Permission on files and folders, the Active Directory users and the File Server network shares.

It provides file access and sharing functionality through client agents for PCs, Macs, File Servers, Web Browsers, and Mobile Devices. The client agent software on Windows and Mac provides real drive mapping and volume mounting support that contains advanced optimization for WAN(Wide Area Network) data transfer.

The services can be deployed in flexible combinations to meet different needs. There are two primary ways to deploy the CentreStack Server:

1. Deploy in the same site as the File Servers and Active Directory domain controllers:

See also:

File Server Remote Access

2. Deploy in a site remotely, such as Amazon Web Services EC2, Microsoft Azure, or in a Data Center where the Managed Service Provider (MSP) hosts their infrastructure:

1.3 System Components

There are three different system components (logical components that can co-exist in the same server) in the CentreStack server. In the smallest depl oyment unit, the three different components can co-exist in one single machine (all-in-one deployment).

1.3.1 1. Web Server Component - The CentreStack Server

The Web Server component is ASP.NET and WFC code that is hosted by IIS on a Windows Server. The Web Server component is actually comprised of two separate "sub-components":

- Web Node
- Worker Node

These sub-components exist for historical purposes and there are still elements in the Cluster Manager user interface for configuring these sub-components.

1.3.2 2. Database - Configuration Information and System Log

The database contains persistent information for the system. This persistent information includes static configuration information such as user name, file storage and active directory connection information. The database also stores dynamic information such as activity log, file change log and audit traces.

CentreStack supports the MySQL and Microsoft SQL Server Database Management Systems (DMBS). The all-in-one deployment will deploy MySQL Community Edition on the CentreStack server. The all-in-one deployment is useful for evaluating the software but an external database server is recommended for Production deployments.

1.3.3 3. Back-end File Storage - Where Files and Folders are Stored

The back-end file storage component is the persistent storage location for files and folders. There are two different types of storage services. One is managed by CentreStack, such as the default storage for the cluster and the default storage for tenants. The other is imported storage, for example, existing file server network shares that weren't managed by CentreStack but can be imported to CentreStack for remote and mobile access.

Installation

Warning: If this is the very first time you are installing CentreStack server, it is recommended that you do the all-in-one installation by preparing a clean Windows 2022/2019/2016 virtual machine and installing with all the default parameters. The All-in-one deployment is the smallest fully functional setup and can be used for production environment with < 1000 users.

2.1 Step 1: Prepare the File Storage

CentreStack server is about to cloudify your file storage and enable remote and mobile access, with sync and share capability. So, the first question is: What is your file storage solution?

Your file storage can be a Windows File Server network share or any storage devices that supports CIFS/SMB protocol. It can also be from iSCSI devices that you can mount storage directly as a drive letter in the CentreStack server. It can also be a container inside a private instance of OpenStack Swift, a bucket in Amazon S3 compatible storage, or a container from Windows Azure blob storage. You will need the basic access information ready. For example,

Windows File Server

If it is a Windows File Server, you will need the UNC path to the network share and the user credentials for accessing the folder.

If it is from a local C: drive or local D: drive, you will need a local user credential that has full permission to the local folder.

OpenStack Swift

If it is OpenStack Swift, you will need the authentication URL and credentials and understand the version of your authentication setup, such as KeyStone V2 or KeyStone V3 or just the classic authentication.

Amazon S3

If it is Amazon S3, you will need the Access Key and Secret Key and a Bucket Name. If the Access Key and Secret Key is from an IAM user, you will need to make sure the IAM user has full permission to the bucket.

Windows Azure Blob Storage

You will need the "Storage Account Name" and the "Primary Key" and a container name.

Note: The initial deployment of CentreStack configures the back end storage to use the C:\CentreStack directory on the CentreStack server. This default back end storage location can be changed to another location at a later time by modifying the back end storage of the default tenant. Each CentreStack tenant can be configured for different back end storage locations.

2.2 Step 2: Prepare Active Directory (Optional)

If you are integrating Active Directory, you will need the following information:

- The DNS name (or IP address) of an Active Directory Domain Controller.
- A service account that can access the Active Directory.
- The DNS name of the Active Directory Domain.

Note: If your Active Directory or the client's Active Directory is remotely located with regard to the CentreStack Server, then you should use Server Agent software to connect the Active Directory instead of using LDAP to connect Active Directory.

Note: If you are using Single Sign-On service such as Azure AD, Active Directory Federation Service, OneLogin or OKTA, you can confige SAML based authentication instead of using Active Directory directly. Normally those identity service providers are connected to the corporate Active Directory anyway.

2.3 Step 3: Prepare the Database Server

Note: If you are installing the all-in-one instance, you can skip this step because the all-in-one installer will install a MySQL Community Edition and configure the database accordingly. See *Step 5: Start Installation* below for more about the all-in-one installation.

This step is only for installation that has a separate database node which is not installed by default with any worker node.

All CentreStack servers in a cluster will share one single centralized database.

Warning: With the release of the CentreStack version 9.5.5409.41172, the default database engine for the "all in one" deployment has switched to PostgreSQL or MySQL Community Edition as opposed to Microsoft SQL Server Express Edition. The main reason to make this switch was to avoid the built-in limitations of SQL Server Express Edition (1 GB RAM and 10 GB max database file size).

There are two places that store persistent information. The first place is the File Storage mentioned in Step 1. The second place is the CentreStack database. There is configuration information such as user name, team folder, shared

folder, login token in the database. There is also runtime information such as audit trace and file change log in the database.

The default CentreStack deployment utilizes a MySQL local database on the CentreStack Server. We provide this option to allow the trial installation to be as simple as possible.

Currently CentreStack supports MySQL or Microsoft SQL Server Database Management Systems (DBMS). Some good reasons for deploying an external database server are performance, scalability and/or high availability.

2.3.1 Microsoft SQL Server

If you are using an external Microsoft SQL Server as opposed to the default MySQL all-in-one deployment, then you must ensure the **SQL Server Authentication is configured for Mixed Mode Authentication**. The CentreStack Server connection requires the use of a SQL account, not a Windows integrated authentication account.

During the setup of the first worker node, the installer will need to create a database, create tables inside the database and create stored procedures in the database. Therefore, it requires a SQL security account that has enough privileges for the installation.

If the database server is external to the CentreStack server, make sure TCP protocol is enabled and firewall is opened to accept SQL connections. Default TCP port is 1433 and that port needs to be opened on firewall. If you have SQL Server listening on a different port, that port will need to be opened as well.

2.3.2 MySQL Server

MySQL typically listens on TCP port 3306. Make sure this port is opened on the firewall.

2.3.3 PostgreSQL Server

PostgreSQL usually is the default option for the all-in-one installation. The default port is 5679 but most of the time the database is running on the "localhost", same as the CentreStack server.

2.4 Step 4: Prepare the CentreStack Server

The easiest way to prepare the CentreStack server is to have a clean Windows Server 2022/2019/2016 OS with English locale and make sure the worker nodes are all in the same time zone.

We recommend Windows server 2022, 2019 or Windows server 2016 as a preferred server OS running on a virtual machine.

Supported Operating Systems

- Windows Server 2022
- Windows Server 2019
- Windows Server 2016

Supported CPU

- 64-bit Intel or AMD x64 architecture
- 2 virtual CPUs minimum (4 virtual CPUs or more are recommended)

Memory 8GB RAM minimum (16 GB or more is preferred)

Hard Disk space 100 GB minimum, preferably SSD. This assumes back end file storage is not located on the CentreStack server itself.

2.5 Step 5: Start Installation

You can get the CentreStack installation package from the CentreStack partner portal (by logging in to http://www. centrestack.com) and going to the Private CentreStack section.

ACME	
B Dashboard	
∼ 🛄 Private ACME	CentreStack Partner Downloads
Downloads	
Self-hosted Clusters	
Hosted ACME	(≣) Express Web Installer
Branding	The Web installer is a small executable you can download below. The Web installer will scan your system, install dependency components such as .NET framework, ASP.NET and etc, and present a wizard to guide you through the installation process in about 30 minutes.
Audit Trace	
Marketing Collateral	<u></u> Download
Account Information	Ν
	System Requirements [®]
	Server OS: Windows Server 2012 R2/Windows Server 2012 R2 Physical or Virtual Machine)
	Windows server 2019 (Physical or Virtual Machine) Windows Server 2019 (Physical or Virtual Machine)
	(Windows 10 Pro/Enterprise is also supported for test and other non-production environments)
(2) Support	2 virtual CPUs and 4 GB RAM is sufficient for a proof of concept test.
	Au teasu 4 vinuai CPOs anu to ob is une teconin (c4b94159-2223-4exe

Sign into the CentreStack server console (RDP or physical console are fine) with administrator rights. Once you click the **"Download"** button on the Partner Portal, the installer will appear either in downloads or as a link at the bottom of your browser. Click the executable file to begin the installation.

You will see the welcome screen.

CentreStack Installer		×
~	This wizard will guide you through the installation.	
	You will be asked a few questions about the different options. Prerequisites may be downloaded and installed. The system may restart at the end of the installation.	
	Build: 9500 Gladinet: inc. © 2021	
	Next Cancel	

Click 'Next'

And accept the EULA

License Agreement
Last Modified: July 8, 2015
Gladinet Terms of Service
Please read these terms of service (these "Terms") carefully as they form a contract between you (You and Your) and Gladinet (We or Our) that governs your access and use of: (i) the hosted storage solution provided by Gladinet for online storage, sharing and processing of files, data, text, audio, video, images or other content (collectively, "Content"); (ii) software provided or made available by Gladinet (the "Software"); and, (iii) any written or electronic documentation provided or made available by Gladinet (the "Documentation" (collectively the "Service(s)").
By using any of the Services you agree to be bound by these Terms. If you are using the Services on behalf of an organization, you are agreeing to these Terms for that organization and promising to Gladinet that you have the authority to bind that organization to these Terms. In that case, "you" and "your" will refer to that organization. You may use the Services only in compliance with these Terms and only if you have the power to form a contract with Gladinet and are not barred under any applicable laws from doing so. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THESE TERMS, YOU MUST
☑ I agree

Click 'Next'



And Click Install.

CentreStack Installer



After the installation has been completed successfully, a reboot is required. Click 'Restart'.

Note: CentreStack will install and then you will need to restart your system to complete the installation.

Note: CentreStack is a multi-tenant solution. The Tenant Manager scope is defined for a tenant administrator. For a multi-tenant Cluster Server system, each tenant has an administrator. For a single-tenant Cluster Server system, the default cluster administrator is also the tenant administrator.

Warning: After the reboot and login to the Windows session again with the same Windows admin user credential, it may take 3-5 minutes before all the windows services start and a web browser page will pop-up.

For the next screen, if you have an existing database use the pull-down menu to select a different option otherwise use the default which will also install the PostgreSQL Community Edition database.

×

\rightarrow	=	-0	$\succ \rightarrow$	
Configu	re Database			
Default -	all in one	\$		\rightarrow
	Local installed PostgreSQL server will be used as the database service.			/
$-\lambda$ /				
		1		
		010		G CHE
11010101011101010101010101		APPLY		010/11 m/nu
		10101001010	©centrestack ©2008-2021 GLADINET, INC. ALL RIGHTS	S RESERVED.

In the next screen, enter your Partner Account login credentials to complete the installation.

centrestack	
Forgot your password?	-
Sig	

Chapter $\mathbf{3}$

3 Initial Configuration

After the machine reboots, the Default administration configuration page will be displayed.

First, setup the cluster administrator account.

	Create Default Admin Account		
	1		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
$\langle \rangle$	······		
	By signing up for CentreStack you agree to the Gladinet TERMS OF SERVICE		
		CONTINUE	
			Centrestack ©2008-2021 GLADINET, INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.

After setting up the cluster administrator account, the cluster administrator's dashboard will appear by default.

≣ DASHBOARD		4 trial day(a) left. 資	► & •
★ () 〒 28. ⊠ ≗ ☜ 🖶 🛛 🔟 🖸 🎗 Ÿ			(
TENANTS (COMPANIES, CLIENTS)			*
list list list list list list list list			
Add New Tenant My Tenant			
File uploads in last 60 minutes	1.0	File uploads in last 24 hours	
0.8	0.8		
0.6	0.5		
0.4	0.4		
02	0.2		
-02	-0.2		
-0.4	-0.4		
() Support	-0.6		

Once you see the dashboard, the CentreStack side of the setup is finished successfully. We will continue to check the storage configuration and make sure all components are fully functional.

Web Portal





See below image for the files and folder view:

ACME > FILE BROWSER	🟋 (For Evaluation-Unlicensed)	0 🔳 🗟	•
C, B All my files		0 0 0 0	1
All my files Documents	Pictures i		
\propto_0^{o} Shared files/folders			
Device backups			
Install Windows Client			
C Storage 0 Byte of Unlimited (2 Tolders - 0 Bytes)			
		G	7

From here you can test the installation by creating files, migrating, editing, sharing and deleting files to verify the storage setup is working as expected.s

Management Console

If you are logged in as the Tenant administrator, access the Management Console by clicking the stack icon on the top right of the **"File Browser"** view.

CentreStack > FILE BROWSER	ث ی
$e \uparrow \downarrow \downarrow \vee Places \vee$	S 🗐 🗍
Documents Pictures	Activities Sharing and Collaboration Access Files Seamlessly from My Desktop Image: Collaboration Image: Collaboration <tr< th=""></tr<>
2 Itam/a) Tatal file size 0 butes	

The Tenant Administrator will see the files and folders view by default upon initial login.

Warning: If you are the cluster administrator, you may not see the "Management Console" icon. Instead, you can manage the default tenant from the Cluster Manager -> Tenant Manager and click through to manage the default tenant.

≣	DASHBOARD	7 trial day(s) left. 🎽	≥ & ▼
×	1) 7 22 🖂 🕮 🖬 🕀 🕢 🔟 🔯 🏌 😲		
TE	NANTS (COMPANIES, CLIENTS)		»
	Add New Tenant My Tenant		
	File uploads in last 60 minutes	File uploads in last 24 hours	
	10 10 10 08 08 08 06		
	0.4		

Here is the Tenant Management Console.

DASHBOARD > MY TEL	NANT	l trial day(s) left. 🦉 🔁 🚨 🏲
Tenants +	MY TENANT > TENANT DASHBOARD	0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
Tenants +	WY TENANT > TENANT DASHBOARD \$ W USERS \$ Image: Add New User Image: Admin Image: Add New User Image: Admin Image: Add New User Image: Admin Image: Team Folders (Shared WorkSpaces) Image: Admin State Admin Image: Team Folders (Shared WorkSpaces) Image: Admin State Admin State Admin Image: Team Folders (Shared WorkSpaces) Image: Admin State Admin St	Observit/Weintened Q TENANT FRANCING GROUP POLICY ACCESS POLICY CONTROL PANEL USERS (DUEST USERS) (GROUP BOLES) TEAM FOLDERS TEAM FOLDERS Exact data bacters barrers barrer Local Active Directory Image: Control
() Sugar	CREATE A TEAM FOLDER	Backend Storage Local Storage (cl.OemnStack)

Please reference the CentreStack Admin Guide for complete details about Tenant administration.

Here are a few points that are more important during the deployment phase.

5.1 Add Tenant

You can add a tenant by clicking the 'Add Tenant' Button in the Tenant Manager



5.2 Team Folders

Team Folders are created by the tenant admin. The users that can be assigned to the team folders are the team users within the tenant. Each team user can be assigned read or write permissions to the team folder. For the team users that are not assigned with a specific team folder, the team folder will not show up. Team folders users can also be assigned the "Owner" permission. The owner permission allows the "owner" to maintain and manage the team folder permissions.

You can navigate to the Team Folders by clicking on the arrow in the "Team Folders" tab from the Tenant Manager.



Here is the Team Folders page.

	NANT	9 trial day(s) left. 宮	► & -
Tenants +	MY TENANT > TEAM FOLDERS		0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
🖄 My Tenant	□ ≥ + +++ +++	(0 Published (Team) Folder(s))	×
	Team folders are shared workspaces for collaboration with the team members. Team members can be		
	given read and write permissions to the team folders.		
	12		

5.3 Storage Manager

The tenant admin can update the default (primary) storage configuration information. For example, if the default storage is using Amazon S3, the tenant admin can update the S3 bucket, access key and secret key. However, the tenant admin can not switch the default storage into a different storage service. The cluster admin can help the tenant admin switch the default storage.

First, go to the Cluster Control Panel. Then, click on "Storage Manager"



This will take you to the Storage Manager page.

■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PANEL		9 trial day(s) left. 🎽	► & -
CONTROL PANEL HOME > STORAGE MANAGER			×
EDIT			
Google Drive			
Client ID	(Not Configured)		
Client Secret	Not Configured		
Redirect URL Make sure the redirect URL configured in Google Drive Console matches	(http://tthcitsv01/portal/storageconfig/googledrivecallback.aspx)		
OneDrive			
Client ID	(Not Configured)		

The tenant admin can also add auxiliary storage by using the "Attach Storage" options. The default storage is the root folder of the tenant. Attached auxiliary storage is top level folders inside the root folder.

5.4 User Manager

In the user manager, you can create users, import users from Active Directory over LDAP or import users from Active Directory via Server Agent. Click on the arrow in the "Users" tab.



Then click on "Create or Manage Users".

CentreStack Installation Guide Documentation, Release 12.5.9520.51622



This should take you to a menu of options to add a new user to the tenant.



5.5 Delegate Administration

You can add full delegated admin to the list of "Cloud Administrators". Once you reach the tenant page, click the drop down menu, and then go to the "Control Panel".

CentreStack Installation Guide Documentation, Release 12.5.9520.51622

	TENANT					8 trial day(s) left. 🎽	
Tenants H	MY TENAN	T > TENANT DASHBOARD	0				0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
函 My Tenant	2° Users		Tenant Dashboard	Tenant Plan	Access Control	Control Panel	CCESS CONTROL REPORTS ROUP POLICY ACCESS POLICY
	Add New User	Cluster Admin	User Manager B Team Folders	Guest Manager	Group Manager	Role Manager	IGUEST USERS I GROUPS ROLES
			74				ice is not configure. If you have Active Directory
	謡 Team Fo	olders (Shared Wor	rkSpaces)		>	Remote Activ	ve Directory +
		Team folders are shared w associated with the backe like AWS S3, Azure blob, W	vorkspaces for assigned us nd storage from a file serv /asabi etc. or a team folder	sers. Each team folder m er network share, cloud s that is created from scr	nay be storage services ratch. IT can set	accessible from the AC domain joined machin Agent client.	ME server, please install our Server Agent client on a a. Click on the + icon to download and install the Server
		permissions independent also mirror the existing NT	y on team folders and the s FS permissions or enforce	sub-folders inside it. Tear permissions against ex	m folders can isting NTFS	Backend St	orage 🗸

In Control Panel, Click on "Tenant Administrators".

	TENANT				8 trial day(s) left. 🏋	▶
Tenants +	MY TENANT > CONTROL	PANEL 8				0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
12 My Tenant	💥 CONTROL PANEL HOME					×
		M		\bigwedge		
	Tenant Administrators	Single Sign On	Azure AD	Notifications	Active Directory	Device Manager
	 C	S				
	Application Manager	Sharepoint Online Integration	Email Service	Background Tasks		

At the bottom of the Tenant Administrators page, you can designate the delegated admin.

	MY TE	NANT	8 trial day(s) left. 🎽	D & -
Tenants	+	MY TENANT > CONTROL PANEL		0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
My Tenant		S CONTROL PANEL HOME ➤ TENANT ADMINISTRATORS		×
		Tenant Administrator Info:		
		Cluster Admin	Edit	
		acme1234@example.com	Edit Reset Password	
		Delegate Administrators:		
			Edit	

5.6 Active Directory Integration (Optional)

It is optional to setup the Active Directory Integration. You can get to the integration page from the Management Console -> Advanced -> Active Directory Settings. The active directory setting here refers to local Active Directory with LDAP integration. For remote Active Directory, server agent can be used to connect remote file server folders and remote Active Directory.

Once you reach the tenant page, click the drop down menu, and then go to the "Control Panel".

■ DASHBOARD > MY TE	NANT				8 trial day(s) left. 🏋	► & •
Tenants +	MY TENANT > TENANT DASHBOARD	0				0 Bytes/Unlimited 🔍
论 My Tenant	<u> </u>	Tenant Dashboard	KÖK Tenant Plan	Access Control	Control Panel	CESS CONTROL REPORTS ROUP POLICY ACCESS POLICY
	Add New User Cluster Admin	User Manager	Guest Manager	Group Manager	Role Manager	I USERS USERS GROUPS ROLES AM FOLDERS rectory
	윤 Team Folders (Shared Wor	kSpaces)		>	Remote Activ	ve Directory +
	Team folders are shared w associated with the backer like AWS S3, Azure blob, W	vorkspaces for assigned us nd storage from a file serv /asabi etc. or a team folder	sers. Each team folder m er network share, cloud s r that is created from scr	nay be storage services ratch. IT can set	accessible from the AC domain joined machine Agent client.	DME server, please install our Server Agent client on a a. Click on the + Icon to download and install the Server
	permissions independently also mirror the existing NT	y on team folders and the s FS permissions or enforce	sub-folders inside it. Tear e permissions against ex	m folders can isting NTFS	Backend St	orage 🗸

On the menu that pops up, go to the "Active Directory" option.



This will take you to the Active Directory Page.

■ DASHBOARD > MY TE	NANT	8 trial day(s) left. 🏋	► <u>&</u> ▼
Tenants +	MY TENANT > CONTROL PANEL		0 Bytes/Unlimited
🖄 My Tenant	CONTROL PANEL HOME > ACTIVE DIRECTORY		×
	EDIT	AD Server_Advan	ced Settings
	Enable Active Directory Integration		
	Domain Controller or LDAP Server Address (myhost:389)		
	Not Configured User name (used to connect to your Active Directory Service)		
	Not Configured Password:		
	(Not Configured)		

Note: If this specific tenant's Active Directory is at a remote location, please use the CentreStack Server Agent to connect the Active Directory (No need to use LDAP over Internet WAN connection).

5.7 Group Policy

Granular group policies can be configured for the entire tenant users from Management Console -> Group Policy.

≡ DASHBOARD > DEFAU	JLT GROUP POLICY		8 tr	ial day(s) left. 🎽	► & •
🔓 GROUP POLICY HOME 🔒	<u>t</u>				(?) ×
ommon Settings	~	Д	••	<u></u>	
\blacksquare	a o	2	٥	0	$\langle \! \! \rangle$
Security	Sharing	File Locking	Client Settings Manager	Retention Policy	Anti Virus/Ransomware
Ó					
Endpoint Protection/Device Backup					
ccounts & Login					
older & Storage					
lient Control					
	ASHBOARD > DEFAI	DASHBOARD > DEFAULT GROUP POLICY GROUP POLICY HOME GROUP POLICY HOME Security Security <	CASHBOARD > DEFAULT GROUP POLICY CARCELER CONTROL CON	ASHBOARD > DEFAULT GROUP POLICY GROUP POLICY HOME primmon Settings security Security Sharing File Locking Client Settings Manager Endpoint Protection/Device Backup counts & Login Adder & Storage ient Control	ASHBOARD > DEFAULT OROUP POLICY CROUP POLICY HOME Security Sharing File Locking Client Settings Manager Retention Policy Image: Client Settings Manager Retention Policy Retention Policy Image: Client Settings Manager Retention Policy Retention Policy

5.8 Branding

You can brand the web portal, Windows and Mac clients, iOS and Android Applications.

The self-service branding starts with the "Cluster Manager". In order to start the branding, you will login to the web portal as the Master Administrator.

After you login to the web portal, click to the "Cluster Branding" Pages.

centrestack	■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER BRANDING		30 trial day(s) left. 🎽		<u>&</u> ▼
Dashboard	General Web Portal Client Download Windows Cli	ent Mac Client Emails Android Client	iOS Client Export/Import		×
🛞 Tenant Manager				RESET ALL	EDIT
Cluster Branding					_
A Reports	Product Name:	Not Branded			
💥 Cluster Control Panel	what you want to can the product.				
2 Default Group Policy	Web-UI Theme (takes effect when you login next time):	blue			
Oloud Backup and Restore	Tenant Default Language:	No Default			
	Customized Theme Color				
	'Contact Us' URL The URL of your contact us page	Not Branded			
⑦ Support					

Please reference the "Cluster Branding" section in the Admin Guide for the self-hosted CentreStack server.

Enable SSL – Install SSL Certificate

Note: Assuming that you have already setup your DNS to point to a DNS name connected to the CentreStack server and an SSL certificate already purchased for the DNS name. If not, you can acquire an SSL certificate from your SSL vendor.

We recommend using https://www.ssllabs.com/ to test your SSL setup because the SSL Labs site will produce a report on whether the SSL is compatible with all devices such as iOS devices.

You can also use openssl to check the SSL certificates and whether or not the whole certificate trust chain is completely installed on the server side.

openssl s_client -connect server.yourwebhoster.com:443

You will install the SSL certificate by using the IIS Manager. Look for "Server Certificates" and double click on it.



Click on "Import" to import an existing SSL Certificate. Leave the Certificate Store as "Personal" or "Web Hosting", either way is fine.

se this feature to request	and manage o	certificates that	the Web server can use with	websites configured for SSI		Import
se this feature to request Filter: Name	and manage o	certificates that	the Web server can use with	websites configured for SSI		
Filter: Name	• 🦞 Go 🕞			websites configured for 55E.		Create Certificate Request
Name 🔺		Show All	Group by: No Grouping	•		Complete Certificate Reques
	lssued To	Issued By	Expiration Date	Certificate Hash	Certif	Create Domain Certificate
	localhost	localhost	12/31/2039 6:59:59 PM	A116168490F0454CD2EF77FD2AB808	Perso	Create Self-Signed Certificate
						Enable Automatic Rebind of
			Impoi	rt Certificate ? ×		Renewed Certificate
			Certificate file (.pfx): Password: Select Certificate Store: Personal Image: Allow this certificate to			

Import Certificate ? ×
<u>C</u> ertificate file (.pfx):
C:\cert\wildcard_export_1_20_14.pfx
<u>P</u> assword:
•••••
Select Certificate <u>S</u> tore:
Web Hosting 🗸 🗸
✓ <u>A</u> llow this certificate to be exported
OK Cancel

Verify that the certificate is available:



You can also verify the SSL certificate from the MMC/Certificates snap-in (Local Computer).

Action Yew Faugrites Window Help Actions Console Root Console Root Certificates (Local Computer) Certificates (Local Com	Console	1 - [Console Root\Certi	ficates (Local Computer)\Web	Hosting\Cert	ificates]	- 0 ×
Console Root Issued To Issued By Expiration Personal Certificates 3/18/2 Certificates Certificates 3/18/2 Certificates Certificates More Actions Intermediate Certification Auth Intermediate Certification Auth More Actions Intermediate Certificates Trusted Publishers More Actions Internediate Certification Auth Certificates More Actions Intermediate Certification Auth Second Certification Auth More Actions Internediate Certification Auth Second Certification Auth More Actions Internediate Certificates Second Certificates More Actions Second Certificates Second Certification Auth Second Certificates Second Certificates Second Certificates Second Ce	🚟 Eile Action Yiew Favgrites Wir	ndow Help				_ 8 ×
 Certificates (Local Computer) Personal Certificates Trusted Root Certification Auth Trusted Personal Trusted Publishers Trusted Personal Trusted People Client Authentication Issuers Client Authentication Issuers Smart Card Trusted Roots Trusted Devices Web Hosting Certificates 	📫 Console Root	Issued To	Issued By	Expira	Actions	
Certificates Gerificates	a G Certificates (Local Computer)	🕼 ".gladinet.com	COMODO SSL CA	3/18/2	Certificates	
	Certificates Trusted Root Certification Auth Enterprise Trust Intermediate Certification Auth Intermediate Certification Auth Intermediate Certificates Intrusted Publishers Intrusted Certificates Intrusted People Client Authentication Issuers Remote Desktop Smart Card Trusted Roots Intrusted Devices Web Hosting Certificates				More Actions	,
	< 111 >	<		>		

Now you can bind the "Default Web Site" to the SSL certificate for HTTPS. Right click on the "Default Web Site" and select "Edit Binding".

6]		li li
€) §	DDE1 🕨	
<u>F</u> ile <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp		
<u>File View H</u> elp Connections	ministrator) ools Explore Edit Permi Add Appli Add Virtua Edit Bindir Manage W <u>R</u> efresh Remove Rename	Server Certificates Use this feature to request and manag Filter: Go Name Issu Ioc issions ication al Directory Ngs Vebsite
<u>(</u> 2)	Switch to	

At the binding dialog, edit the HTTPS binding.

			Site E	Bindings	? ×
Type http http:	Host Name	Port 80 443	IP Address * *	Binding Informa	<u>A</u> dd <u>E</u> dit <u>R</u> emove <u>B</u> rowse
					<u>C</u> lose

Now, change the SSL Certificate binding drop-down to the imported SSL certificate.

	Edit Site Binding		? X
Type: https ∨	IP address: All Unassigned	Port: ✓ 443	
Host name:			
Require Server Nar	ne Indication		
SSL certificate:			
stargladinet		Select	View
	-		
		ОК	Cancel

Setup Worker Node for SSL

Login to the Web Portal as the master administrator, then, under the menu next to dashboard, go to "Cluster Control Panel".



After this, go to "Worker Nodes".

CentreStack Installation Guide Documentation, Release 12.5.9520.51622

Image: Image: Image: Image:	ACME
Cluster Branding	Dashboard
Reports	Cluster Branding
Cluster Control Panel	Reports
Perfault Group Policy Node Name Version Status Management UI	2 Default Group Policy
Cloud Backup and Restore	Oloud Backup and Restore

There is an "Advanced Setting" icon on the page.

∎	DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PA	ANEL	18 trial day(s) left. 🎽	▲
• 00	CONTROL PANEL HOME > WORKER NO	DDES		>
C	atabase: AlHin-One: Postgre6QL (10.13) - Log Database: AlHin-O	ne: Postgreeel (10.12)	Advanced Settings	×
	Node Name	Version	Always force SSL for Native Clients Do not follow incoming seriest DNS	
1	tthottsv01	12.5.9500.51526	Do not follow incoming request DNS Disable worker-node load balancing. Vour may hew already taken care of the load balancing at a different level (such as the DNS level), so you don't need worker-node load balancin anymore. All the user interactions will stay at the same incoming worker-node. Per-tenant load balance: Always load balance all users belonging to the same tenant to the same node. This works best if you have many tenants. Per-user load balance: Load balance users to different nodes regardless whether they belong to the same tenant or not. This works best if you few large tenant CLOS	P ② ↔ □

Now, check "Always force SSL on Login" and "Always force SSL for Native Clients" boxes.

Warning: If you use the self-signed SSL certificate, the web portal is the only client that allows you to login after some SSL certificate warning. All other native clients such as Windows, mobile, and Mac clients will reject the connection.

	E DASHBOARD > CLUSTER C	ONTROL PANEL		30 trial day(s) left. 🏋	► & ▼				
• 00	CONTROL PANEL HOME > WORKER NODES ×								
	• +		(1 Worker Node(s))						
	Database: All-In-One: PostgreSQL (10.13) - Log [)atabase: All-In-One: PostgreSQL (10.13)							
	Node Name	Version	Status	Management UI					
1	tthcitsv01	12.5.9500.51526	Idle	Yes	/? \$\$ € Ē				

You can also modify the node property for the node.

E DASHBOA	ARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PANEL	30 trial day(s) left. 🍹	► <u></u>
CONTROL P	ANEL HOME > WORKER NODES		×
o +	Node Name (Computer Name) 🥑 tthcitsv01		
Database: AlHn-One Node Name 1 tthcitsv01	External URL (https://mydomain.com) http://tthcitsv01 Internal URL (https://mydomain.com) http://tthcitsv01		्र कि कि स्ट्री
4	Disable management functionality on this node		,

The Node Name needs to match the hostname of the node. You can get the hostname of the node by going into Command Prompt(Press Windows+R and then type in cmd) and typing in hostname.

■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PANEL	30 trial day(s) left. 🎽 💽 💌
CONTROL PANEL HOME > WORKER NODES	C:\Windows\system32\cmd.exe Microsoft Windows [Version 10.0.17763.1935] (c) 2018 Microsoft Comparation All rights reserved
	C:\Users\csadmin>hostname TTHCITSV01
•	C:\Users\cs
Databi Node Name (Computer Name) 🕑	
N tthcitsv01	
1 ttr External URL (https://mydomain.com) @	
http://tthcitsv01	
Internal URL (https://mydomain.com) 🥑	
http://tthcitsv01	
Disable management functionality on this node	

The External URL should match the external URL for HTTPS. (If you do not have a SSL certificate installed yet, this can be HTTP for now).

E	■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTR	OL PANEL	18 trial day(s) l	left. 🎽	► &
• 0	CONTROL PANEL HOME > WORK	ER NODES			>
1	AlFin-One: PostgreSQL (1013) - Log Detabase Node Name tthcttsv01	Node Name (Computer Name) tthcitsv01 External URL (https://mydomain.com) https://file.tsys.gladinet.com Internal URL (https://mydomain.com) http://thcitsv01 Disable management functionality on this node	×		1 \$\$ ↔ [
			APPLY		

The Internal URL will need to match the internal IP address or node's private DNS name and the HTTP or HTTPS protocol.

■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PANEL	16 trial day(s) left.	<u>.</u>
CONTROL PANEL HOME > WORKER NODES		
• +	×	
Database: Alfin-One: PostgreSQL (10.13) - Log Database: Node Name (Computer Name)	- 1	
1 tthcitsv01 External URL (https://mydomain.com) @		Ø \$\$ € \$\$
https://file.tsys.gladinet.com	- 1	
http://tthcitsv01	- 1	
Disable management functionality on this node	- 1	
	- 1	

8 Verify External URL, Internal URL and the Node Name

8.1 Verify External URL

It is very straight forward to verify whether or not your external URL is set correctly. You just need to point your web browser to the external URL and verify that the Login Page shows up and there is no SSL warnings.

You can also verify the External URL by doing a file share to your own email address outside of the CentreStack system. A file sharing invitation will be sent to that Email address. After you receive the Email, click on the link included in the Email and make sure the link points to the External URL.

Note: The external URL is used in the email sharing template. So a simple file sharing test will verify whether the External URL is setup correctly.

8.2 Verify Internal URL

For the verification of Internal URL, you can use the Node Performance page to make sure the node performance information shows up. (Reports -> Node Performance).

АСМЕ		BOARD > REPORTS			29 trial day(s) left. 🍹		& ▼
Dashboard	Upload Report	Storage Statistics	Active Users Guest User	s Node Performa	ance Bandwidth Usa	age System Diagno	ostic Repo
🛞 Tenant Manager	()						_
Cluster Branding	1 node(s) found					Ŕ	£
A Reports							
💥 Cluster Control Panel		Database			tthcitsv01		
20 Default Group Policy			PURGE	Last Reporte	d	5 seconds ago	
	Total Configuration Record	guration Records	62	Total Reques	sts Processed	0	
O Cloud Backup and Restore	Total File 0	hange Records	1.38 K	Request Exe	cuting	0	
	Total File In	ndex Records	1	Last Request	t Time	0	
	Total Audit	Trace Records	7	Pending Cha	nge Notifications	0	
				Active Node	Request	0	
				Pending Cha	nges Polling	0	
				Active Clients	S	0	
			Pending Dir Request (H) 0		0		
				Pending Dir F	Request (L)	0	
⑦ Support	4						÷

8.3 Verify Node Name

To verify that the node name is correct, you can right click on a folder and use the **"Share"** option to verify that the email has been received and is correctly pointing to an external URL.

ACME > FILE BROWSER		?		& ▼		
Q	C All my files	Download		000		(
		Download using downloader				
© ~	Documents					
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Ø < Ĉ ☆ \$	Cut				
		Rename				
		Hove Move				
$\bigcirc$	Test1.txt	Delete				
		Share				
		Public Link				
		Copy Direct URL			Ð	

### 9 Add additional CentreStack servers to the cluster

Adding an additional CentreStack server is as simple as installing the first CentreStack server. Run the CentreStack server installation program on another server, specifying the same database as the first server in the cluster.

Warning: Adding additional CentreStack servers to an existing cluster is optional.

If you only have a few hundred users, you don't need to have a second node from a scalability perspective. The scalability point of adding a second CentreStack Server is at 1000 users. For best practices, you will always scale vertically first such as making a 2-CPU machine into a 4-CPU machine and add RAM to the CentreStack Server before scaling horizontally by adding more CentreStack Servers.

However, from a high availability(HA) perspective, you may want to have a second CentreStack Server.

**Warning:** An external database server should be deployed if you are scaling out the cluster to more than one CentreStack server. The "all-in-one" deployment with a local MySQL database is not intended to be used for scaling out or high availability.

**Warning:** A hardware or software load balancer will be required if more than one CentreStack server is deployed in a cluster.

Warning: All CentreStack servers in the same cluster must use the same time zone.

## 10 Branding

You can brand the web portal, Windows and Mac clients, iOS and Android Applications.

## **10.1 Self-Service Branding**

The self-service branding starts with the "Cluster Manager". In order to start the branding, you will login to the web portal as the Master Administrator.

After you login to the web portal, click to the "Cluster Branding" Pages.

centrestack	■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER BRANDING	30 trial day(s) left. 🎽		&▼
Dashboard	General Web Portal Client Download Windows Client Mac Client Emails Android Cl	lient iOS Client Export/Import		×
💫 Tenant Manager		RESE	T ALL	EDIT
Cluster Branding				
A Reports	Product Name: Not Branded			
💥 Cluster Control Panel	What you want to call the product.			
Contract Con	Web-UI Theme (takes effect when you login next time):			
Oloud Backup and Restore	Tenant Default Language: No Default			
	Customized Theme Color			
	'Contact Us' URL Not Branded The URL of your contact us page			
③ Support				

Please reference the "Branding" section in the Admin Guide for the self-hosted CentreStack server.

## 11 Upgrade CentreStack

We publish updated notes to our public blog forum called |prodname| Blog. It is recommended that you perform an update if your self-hosted CentreStack and clients are three months or older.

## 11.1 Using the GUI Installer to Upgrade



To install an update go to your Partner Portal at https://www.centrestack.com/management/partnerloginpage.aspx and

download the GUI installer. When you run the GUI installer, it will detect the existing installation and perform an upgrade.



### **Advanced Topics**

These advanced topics require changes to the web.config file which is critical for the smooth operation of CentreStack, therefore, it is not recommended that you change the web.config file without first consulting Gladinet support.

#### 12.1 Split Database

The database contains two types of information.

The first type of information is the configuration data that is relatively static. For example, user name, user email, user's published shared files and folder etc. This type of information is relatively small. It can be estimated at 5000 bytes per user. So if you have 2000 users, it can be estimated at 10 MB.

The second type of information is relatively more volatile. For example, the file change log, the audit trace and the file list for index. It can be estimated at 100 file changes per user per day and each file change can be estimated at 1000 bytes for database storage. So for a 15 day (Default change log history), it can be estimated at 100*1000*15 = 1.5MB per user for 15 day period. If you need HIPPA compliance, the default change log history can be significantly longer so this part of the database will be much bigger.

For performance and regulatory reasons, it is recommended to split the database into two separate databases, one that contains static information and one that contains relatively more volatile information.

The secondary database (for more volatile data) can be either MySQL Database or Micrsoft SQL Database.

To split the database, first create a new database that will be used to store the volatile information. Create a database user and allow this user full access to the database (equivalent to db_owner). Once the database and user are created, sign into the CentreStack management console as the cluster admin and navigate to Cluster Control Panel > Settings > Change Log. Update the "Logging DB Connection String" setting using an appropriate connection string:

■ DASHBOARD > CLUSTER CONTROL PANEL	Tif	
Cluster Settings Performance and Throttling Languages Branding Change Log License String		
Keep file change log for n days.		
Email Address to Receive Cloud Monitor Messages:		
Logging DB Connection String:		

#### **Connection String Example for MySQL Database**

Server=localhost;Port=3306;Database=gladinet;Uid=root;Pwd=password;

#### **Connection String Example for Microsoft SQL Database**

```
Data Source=server_name;Initial Catalog=logging_db_name;User Id=user_id;Password=user_

→password;
```

#### 12.2 Change Authentication Algorithm to Version 2

If you have a new installation of CentreStack without any legacy user, we recommend you hard code the authentication algorithm to version 2.

You can locate the web.config file in the root folder of the installation directory (same web.config file as referenced in the previous section) and add a line inside the <appSettings file="branding.config">section.</a>

```
<add key="sys_access_ver" value="2" />
```

#### 12.3 Change the Synchronized Uploader to Asynchronized Uploader

Under the C:Program Files (x86)CentreStack(or the installation directory), look into the UploadDownloadProxy and identify the web.config file. Find the line with the SyncedStorageProxiedPutUploadHandler and change it to Storage-ProxiedPutUploadHandler.

This optimization might not work on all systems, therefore, it is recommend you test web portal Drag and Drop upload after you make the change. If it does not work for your IIS, you can revert the change back or consult Gladinet support.

```
<add name="storageuploadex" path="proxiedupload.up" verb="PUT"
type="GladinetStorage.SyncedStorageProxiedPutUploadHandler"
resourceType="Unspecified" preCondition="integratedMode" />
```

## 12.4 Zone Support

If you have two independent CentreStack clusters, for example, one cluster in US and one cluster in UK, you can use the zone support to connect the two clusters together. The advantage of using zones is the end user login request will automatically be redirected to the zone the user belongs to.

## 12.5 Scalability Tuning

CentreStack is built on top of ASP.NET and WCF. By default, both ASP.NET and WCF has throttle control parameters that we can tune and remove. Please reference this MSDN article for performance tuning:

http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ff647813.aspx



(image source: http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ff647813.aspx)



(image source: http://msdn.microsoft.com/en-us/library/ff647813.aspx)

#### 12.5.1 Tuning #1 – namespace/web.config

There are three parameters about max concurrent calls, concurrent sessions and concurrent instances.

```
<serviceThrottling
maxConcurrentCalls="100"
maxConcurrentSessions="100"
maxConcurrentInstances="1000" />
```

This is set in the <CENTRESTACKInstallDir>\namespace\web.config file

There may be existing blocks of serviceBehaviors and behavior blocks there. You can simply add the serviceThrottling block.

#### 12.5.2 Tuning #2 – aspnet.config

The aspnet.config is under c:\windows\Microsoft.NET\Framework64\v4.0.30319

system.web is an element of <configuration> so you can add it inside the <configuration> block.

```
<system.web>
<applicationPool
maxConcurrentRequestsPerCPU="5000"
```

(continues on next page)

(continued from previous page)

```
requestQueueLimit="20000"/>
</system.web>
```

#### 12.5.3 Tuning #3 – machine.config

Machine.config is at %windir%\Microsoft.NET\Framework64\[version]\config\machine.config

(%windir% typically is c:\windows. [version] is 4.0.30319 for .NET framework 4)

#### processModel

processModel is under <system.web> and <system.web> is under <configuration>. Most likely the processModel block is there alredy but with autoConfig set to true. We can change it to set to false and with the attributes set below.

```
<processModel
autoConfig="false"
maxWorkerThreads="500"
maxIoThreads="500"
minWorkerThreads="2"/>
```

#### connectionManagement

<system.net> is a block below <configuration>. Typically if <system.net> doesn't already exist, the block can be added to the bottom of the config file, right before the closing tag of <configuration>.

```
<system.net>

<connectionManagement>

<add address="*" maxconnection="20000"/>

</connectionManagement>

</system.net>
```

#### 12.5.4 Tuning #4 – appConcurrentRequestLimit

appcmd.exe set config /section:serverRuntime /appConcurrentRequestLimit:50000

#### 12.6 Need More Information?

Contact Gladinet Support (support@gladinet.com) for more information.

## Upgrade CentreStack

We publish updated notes to our public blog forum called CentreStack Blog. It is recommended that you perform an update if your self-hosted CentreStack and clients are three months or older.

## 13.1 Using the GUI Installer to Upgrade



To install an update go to your Partner Portal and download the GUI installer. When you run the GUI installer, it will detect the existing installation and perform an upgrade.



Indices and tables

- genindex
- modindex
- search